LYNDON CITY COUNCIL
REGULAR MEETING MINUTES OF
August 2, 2021

The Lyndon City Council met in regular session on Monday, August 2, 2021 at 7:00 p.m., at
Lyndon City Hall.

1. CALLTO ORDER: Mayor Steve Morrison called the meeting to order.

a) ROLL CALL: City Clerk called roll of the City Council. Mayor Steve Morrison,
Council President Darin Schmitt, and members Katie Shepard, Kevin Heit, and
Lynn Atchison were present. Eric Ramey was absent with notification.

City Staff present: Pat Walsh, City Attorney; Julie Stutzman, City Clerk; Scott
Culley, Maintenance Supervisor; and David Forkenbrock, Chief of Police.

Others Present: Sharon Hanna and Zacharia Hanna.

2. PUBLIC HEARING- CDBG-CV GRANT CLOSE OUT: At 7:03 p.m. Heit made the motion
to open the public hearing to receive comments from the public in regards to the CDBG-CV
Grant which provided $167,000 of financial assistance to qualifying Lyndon businesses, the
Lyndon Methodist Church and Help House during the COVID-19 pandemic. Shepard
seconded; motion carried.

No comments were made by the public. At 7:08 p.m. Atchison made the motion to close the
public hearing. Shepard seconded; motion carried.

Atchison made the motion to authorize Mayor Morrison to sign the Grantee’s Release Form,
the Certification of Recipient as well as the final request for payment of the remaining
CDBG-CV funding for administrative costs in the amount of $3,750.00. Heit seconded;
motion carried.

3. APPROVAL OF MINUTES OF PREVIOUS MEETING:

a) Schmitt made the motion to approve the regular meeting minutes of
July 19, 2021 as amended. Heit seconded; motion carried.

4. CONSENT AGENDA:

a) Approval of Bills: Schmitt made the motion to approve the bills from July 19, 2021
to August 2, 2021. Shepard seconded; motion carried.

5. CORRESPONDENCE TO COUNCIL:

o Jackson Street Project Update Memo from Wes Weishaar with BG Consultants.
o Public Wholesale Water Supply District #12 meeting minutes of June 16, 2021.

6. UNFINISHED BUSINESS:



Regular Council Minutes of August 2, 2021

Page 2

a)

DILAPIDATED HOUSING: The Council was provided a packet of information
that the Mayor had obtained from another local city outlining the procéss of dealing
with dilapidated housing. After a lengthy discussion, Council tabled the matter.

320 ASH - PARKING: The Maintenance Supervisor stated that a resident asked if
they could park in the front of their house at 320 Ash and do park their occasionally
as off-street parking to unload things. The area is approximately 16 feet curb edge
to curb edge, would only allow for one vehicle to park, and lies in the city’s right-
of-way. The Maintenance Supervisor stated the property has adequate parking in
the front and on the side of the house and does not recommend parking to be put in
the city’s right-of-way. It was noted there is a lay-down curb where the vacated
alley was platted previously. Mayor Morrison asked if a culvert would need to be
put in and the Maintenance Supervisor stated it would not because it is already
designed with a flow line and the ditch is concrete. The Maintenance Supervisor
stated they would need to put some type of a hard surface down if they were going
to park in that area very often because during wet times it would slowly put ruts in
the area and it was noted that the sidewalk is not in good shape either. He stated
that even if the sidewalk was in good condition, it is not designed to be driven over.
After further discussion, Council deferred the issue to Planning and Zoning. It was
noted that the Zoning Administrator was included in the email in regards to the
parking request. Mayor Morrison stated he would contact the Zoning
Administrator to discuss it.

CITY HALL GENERATOR: Mayor Morrison asked if the city had obtained
competitive quotes on trade-in/replacement of the generator and the Maintenance
Supervisor stated he has only obtained one at this time for discussion. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated it seems that Foley does not want to give the city
much in trade in value for the existing generator and the cost to replace was
excessive for what the generator is used for. The cost for the new generator with
the add-on transfer switch is approximately $28,199.31. Foley is quoting the trade-
in value for the current generator at $7,500.00 which would bring the cost down to
$20,699.31.

The generator sat previously at the old sewer plant, repurposed for City Hall
during the sewer project and is more than is what is needed to keep power on in
the building during outages. Since that time the city has installed a new water
pump as well as a new control panel which was pretty expensive. It was noted that
up until recently, City Hall has never had a back-up generator.

Heit stated he had provided a link in an email that showed where the city could
purchase a whole home automatic generator through Lowes or Home Depot for
less than $8,000 and reiterated that City Hall does not really need a three-phase

generator.



Regular Council Minutes of August 2, 2021

Page 3

Mayor Morrison stated the City would be better off selling the current generator
out right on the market and purchasing a generator from Lowes or Generac dealer
for a less expensive home unit to run City Hall.

Atchison stated that his only concern is that City Hall would be considered an EOC
if there was ever a tornado strike and the building was not hit, power would be
needed to run city operations. The City Clerk noted that residents without shelter
have come to City Hall to shelter in the basement if the conditions were severe.

Council tabled the matter and wants to continue to look for better options for
replacement of the generator with something more suitable and cost effective.

QUOTES FOR BACKHOE REPLACEMENT: The Council received quotes from
Foley for a used 2015 Caterpillar 416F2 backhoe in the amount of $54,000.00 after
$17,000 trade in and also from Victor Phillips for a new Case 580SN backhoe in the
amount of $82,849.000 after $22,000 trade in.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated they went and looked at a new Case 580SN
backhoe at Victor Phillips in Topeka which has everything they are looking for, was
able to test drive it and operates close the same as the JCB the city has now. He also
stated that he is looking into a used Caterpillar 416F2 backhoe similar to size and
horsepower to the Case, has low hours and was part of a rental fleet. Heit stated
the backhoe was more than likely brought into the rental fleet new and assumes it
was held to a tight maintenance schedule.

Mayor Morrison stated it is approximately a 528,000 difference between the
machines and the difference would possibly purchase another piece of equipment if
the used backhoe was purchased. Mayor Morrison asked if this was a 2021 or 2022
budget item and if there was budget available for purchase this year. The City
Clerk stated it can be purchased in either the 2021 or 2022 budget as funds are
available.

Atchison asked the Maintenance Supervisor if he test drove the Caterpillar. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated if he can get it scheduled CAT is planning on
delivering it on Thursday and the city will be allowed to use it for a week. It was
consensus of the Council to proceed with Maintenance test driving the backhoe.
The Maintenance Supervisor provided a rental agreement which the City Attorney
reviewed and voiced concern about the city having total risk while the machine is
in the City’s possession and recommends getting temporary insurance. The City
Attorney recommended the City Clerk to call Bolz Insurance and see what the cost
to insure the backhoe at replacement cost while it is in the City’s possession will be.



Regular Council Minutes of August 2, 2021

Page 4

If the cost to insure it for a week is high, then maintenance will go and test it out at
Foley instead of using for a week in town.

Council tabled purchasing a replacement backhoe to the August 16 meeting.

7. NEW BUSINESS:

a)

2022 BUDGET PRESENTATION: Mike Peroo presented the 2022 Budget plan to the
governing body. (See Attached presentation). The presentation provided an
overview of the budget, Revenue Neutral Rate discussion with analysis of property
tax trends, days of cash reserve and ending fund balances as well as analysis of
general, water, sewer, and sales tax funds. For the 2022 budget one mill equals $6,775
which is up 2% from the previous year, however, the RNR rate is 64.263 which has
decreased from the 2021 budget total mill levy of 65.834.

Overall, the city’s cash position is strong and the budget is good as presented with
the city being able to stay within the Revenue Neutral Rate. It was consensus of the
Council to proceed with the holding the budget hearing at the August 16 meeting
and publishing the notice.

8. STAFF REPORTS:

a)

CITY CLERK: The City Clerk stated she did increase the capital outlay in pool by
$2,000 because the pump is slowly failing and trying to limp it along until the end of
the season which is August 8.

The City Clerk stated she submitted the application to receive the American Rescue
Plan Act funding and the city received $77,446 which is half of the $154,892 the city
has been awarded. The remaining $77,446 will be received next year around the
same time. The funding has to be expended by 2025 or 2026. The funding can be
used for water and sewer infrastructure or broadband.

Genea Reynolds from the library will be attending the August 16 meeting in regards
to a project they would like to do at the Jones Park Trail.

PUBLIC WORKS: Council received a copy of the maintenance activity report from
July 19 to August 2, 2021.

Mayor Morrison asked about properties that need to be cleaned up better in regards
to weeds and grass. It was noted they need to be cited and handled through
municipal court. It was requested to speak with the person being contracted to mow
properties, after they have been through the process and notified, to weed eat better
and make the property more presentable.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated he was approached by a resident walking their
dog at Jones Park who thanked him for installing the dog waste disposal station and
also inquired if the city would consider putting in a dog park where the playground
equipment used to be. The resident stated they have been letting their dog loose to



Regular Council Minutes of August 2, 2021
Page 5

run in the baseball fields and does pick up after their dog when they do that. The
Maintenance Supervisor stated he has not pursued it in regards to the cost of
installing a fence and a couple of gates. No action taken.

The Maintenance Supervisor stated they did move the pipe out of the mower shed
and still need to remove the lumber that remains. He stated that once those are
removed the building can come down.  Atchison stated he still has someone
working on finding Connex boxes for storage.

Mayor Morrison asked if the city had a sprayer to spray the cypress trees that are
showing signs of bagworms. The Maintenance Supervisor stated if the city does not,
he will get one from the County.

Mayor Morrison asked the Maintenance Supervisor if he has asked BG Consultants
about the concrete around the sewer manhole between the school and weight room
on 6th Street and Date which is wearing more than it should. Mayor Morrison stated
it should be a warranty issue. The Maintenance Supervisor stated he would check
on it.

c¢) POLICE: Council received a copy of the officer activity report from July 19 to
August 2, 2021.

Atchison stated he has noticed on Facebook that there have been some dogs picked
up at large and asked if they have been claimed or if the agreement with Danica
Barone is working. The City Clerk stated that Danica Barone has taken the last two
and it is working great.

Chief Forkenbrock stated that in 8 weeks or so they should be receiving their vests
and the total was approximately $1,000 less than approved.

Chief Forkenbrock stated the firearm instructor class spot was full, however, was
able to get in after a spot opened up in October. He stated that with the cost of class,
range fee, NRA membership and hotel, the cost was still $350 under the $1,500
budget approved by Council. It was also noted that Forkenbrock and Atchison are
working with Bolz Insurance in regards to the city having insurance for a range at
the lagoon site and will present it at a future meeting.

Atchison asked about a traffic stop where a person was written a warning for
driving while suspended and asked if that is not a mandatory court appearance
violation. Chief Forkenbrock stated he has spoken to the officer about it but does not
have the full detail. The violation was observed in the city, however, by the time the
officer was able to get on the radio, the vehicle was outside city limits and she asked
permission by the County to proceed with the stop and an Osage County Deputy
gave her permission.

9. COUNCIL/MAYOR COMMENTS AND REPORTS:

Atchison stated that the town is looking good, parks are being mowed, weeds are getting
knocked down and feels we have a great maintenance crew who like working for the city



Regular Council Minutes of August 2, 2021
Page 6

10.

11,

and like their job. Atchison also stated that the Chief has been doing a good job getting the
Police Department updated and even though the car purchase was not at an opportune time
financially, it did help Lyndon as well as the City of Melvern out of a pinch. He also stated
he is excited for the future of Lyndon as well as Osage County.

Shepard stated she has had several compliments on appearance of downtown and the
parks.

Mayor Morrison asked what progress has been made on painting City Hall. It was noted
that it was discussed last meeting and deferred to the office staff to pick the colors.
Atchison stated the office staff is here every day and felt they should have some input on the
color.

Mayor Morrison stated the tennis court is not the agenda this meeting, however, the school
is getting bids for replacement of the fencing for the tennis courts and are proactively
helping out with the project. The Maintenance Supervisor asked about the status of fixing
and resurfacing the tennis courts because it will be an all-day job to power wash and clean.
Mayor Morrison stated it would be better if the courts were cleaned when the city decides to
proceed with resurfacing.

Mayor Morrison stated that there have been discussions about installing extra lighting in the
parking lot at Jones Park and asked the Maintenance Supervisor if a time with Evergy has
been set up and there has not been. Mayor Morrison requested that the Maintenance
Supervisor set up a time to meet with Evergy and include Superintendent Marcotte so there
can be discussion about the north parking lot also. There will also be discussion with
Evergy regarding some of the streetlights in town that are in need of replacement. It was
noted that the poles that are in poor condition need to be turned into Evergy and the City
Clerk stated that if the pole numbers are provided to the office, they can be sent in writing
to Evergy.

EXECUTIVE SESSION: At 9:21 p.m. Atchison made the motion to recess to executive
session for Non-Elected Personnel for 10 minutes with the City Attorney attending.
Shepard seconded; motion carried.

At 9:31 p.m. Council reconvened with Atchison making the motion to approve Salary
Schedule B for the 2022 budget which will be effective January 1, 2022. Shepard seconded;

motion carried.

At 9:45 p.m. Atchison made the motion to recess to executive session for 10 minutes for
Attorney-Client Privilege with the City Attorney. Heit seconded; motion carried.

At 9:55 p.m. Council reconvened with no binding action taken.

ADJOURNMENT: Schmitt made the motion to adjourn to Monday, August 16, 2021 at 7:00
p.m. for regular meeting. Shepard seconded; motion carried.



Regular Council Minutes of August 2, 2021
Page 7

Respectfully submitted,

Julie Stutzman, CMC
City Clerk

Approved by the governing body on ) lﬂ ZoZ ) i,
\\\\\‘ LYN J",
R wr e
H3) ;e LI
Attest: ':; i SE AL - L
ER L .
ﬁﬁ? CS .‘.\F?;s:

‘, " :?A GE CO"“\\\

LTI

Julie Stutzman, CMC
City Clerk



